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I.  The proposal due date as shown in Standard Form (SF) 33, Block 9 is changed from 3:00 P.M. local time on 8  March 2004 to 3:00 P.M. local time on 17 March 2004.”
II. The following are responses to industry questions relating to the solicitation documents.  All questions are repeated verbatim unless otherwise noted.  Any revisions to the solicitation or any of its attachments are annotated as “Solicitation Change.”   If you have submitted a question, and have not received a response, or a response is not incorporated herein, please contact the Contract Specialist.

1
1.1  [A]lthough the place of performance is listed as San Diego there was no indication in the RFP or attachments that it is a requirement. Will the government require the contractor to have a facility in/or in close proximity to San Diego? Also will key personnel be required to be located in the immediate vicinity?

Answer (Solicitation Change):

The following Provision is added to Section L, Instructions, Conditions and Notices to Offerors or Quoters:

“L-336  PLACE OF PERFORMANCE (DEC 1999) (VARIANCE) 

For all labor categories, your proposal must be based on performance of approximately 30 percent at Government Facilities and 70  percent at Contractor Facilities.”

A portion of the SOW requirements will include work to be performed at SPAWAR Systems Center, San Diego and other Government sites.  However, there is no requirement that the contractor be physically located in San Diego.  The contractor, including its Key Personnel, will be expected to perform all of the requirements identified in the solicitation's SOW.

2
2.1   Page 67, subparagraph (B) states “The offeror’s proposal shall be prepared to print on standard 8 ½” by 11” paper, double-spaced with 1” minimum margins.  Foldouts may be used, but shall be no larger than 8 ½” by 14” , and shall count as two pages.”
 
Typically, foldout pages are 11” by 17”.  Are the foldout dimensions specified on Page 67, subparagraph (B) in error?  Should they be 11” by 17” vice 8 ½” by  11”?
   
Answer:  Our printers do not have the capability to print anything larger than 8-1/2" wide paper.  The reference to 8-1/2" by 14" paper in provision L-317 is correct.  

3
3.1  Page 3, B-309(a):  The stated 731,250 hours for the 5-year base period is consistent with 146,250 hours per year as presented on page 71.  However, a 6-month award term with 146,250 hours doubles the number of hours per year.  Is this the government’s intent?

Answer (Solicitation Change): Clause B-309, Paragraph (a) is changed to read “73,125” hours of direct labor for each award term period vice “146,250.”

3.2  Page 5, B-309(h):  It appears that the fixed fee will be the same for all labor hours, regardless of the labor category or cost.  Is this the government’s intent?

Answer: Clause B-309, paragraph (h) is correct.

3.3  Page 8, C-325(b):  This paragraph includes the phrase, “if a security clearance is to be obtained.”  We note that there is no DD Form 254 attached to the RFP, and little other RFP mention of security concerns or clearances.  Is there a possibility that the government will issued task orders that require some or all of the contractor personnel to have security clearances?  If so, what is the highest level of security clearance anticipated?

Answer:  Security clearances are not required.

3.4 Page 9, C-326(a)(3):  The 5-calendar day response time could include a non-work Friday and a weekend, when it is hard to get cost quotes for ODCs etc.  We therefore respectfully request that the government consider changing this requirement to five work days.

Answer: This request has been forwarded to the SPAWAR Clause Committee for action.

3.5 Page 62, Part I—COST LABOR MATRIX:  Please consider adding a column “Firm Name” which we believe would make these matrices easier to understand.  Alternately, simply allow us to add the firm name in parentheses after the name of each proposed individual.

Answer:  Offerors may add a column identifying the firm name or include the firm name in parenthesis next to the proposed individual’s name.

3.6. Page 62, PART I –COST LABOR MATRIX and Page 68, L-317(B)(iv):  According to the Q&As distributed with the RFP, this contract will require work at both government and contractor sites.  Typically, the overhead rates are different of government and contractor sites, and the overhead rates of each team member will be different.  However, the Personnel Matrix (which must be submitted exactly as shown) lists a single overhead rate in the heading.  Please remove the overhead rate percent from the heading, and allow us to list the percentage in parentheses after the dollar amount.

Answer: Inclusion of the overhead rate in parentheses after the dollar amount in lieu of the column heading is permitted.  Inclusion of all applicable rates in the column heading is also permitted.

3.7. Page 63, Section L, 52.215-20, Part II, paragraph (4):  Is it acceptable to the Contracting Officer if the "separate cover" submissions from subcontractors are sent via e-mail?   

Answer: All proposed subcontractors, if submitting the required Volume II information under separate cover, shall submit this information in accordance with Provision L-349.

3.8 Page 66, L-317, middle of page:  The sentence, “*In addition, prime …Word 5.0 (or later) format” appears to be missing a line or phrase. 

Answer:  The paragraph reads correctly as it appears in the document posted to the SPAWAR E-commerce web page.
3.9 Pages 66-67, L-317:  For each separately bound section of Volume I, please consider allowing a cover page, table of contents, glossary, Proposal/RFP Cross-Reference Matrix, and Technical/Cost Volume Cross-Reference Matrix which are not included in the page count limits.  Evaluators often find these items useful.

Answer: See 3.13 below.

3.10 Pages 66-67, L-317 and pages 77-81, M-302:  There does not appear to be a requirement to discuss or an evaluation factor related to the RFP Attachment 1 SOW.  If the government wishes bidders to specifically address the SOW, please specify the correct proposal section, and add appropriate page count. 

Answer: Evaluation factors and basis for award are as stated in the RFP, Section M-307.

3.11 Page 67, L-317(B):  Please consider changing from 8½” by 14” to a standard foldout of 11” by 17” which would be consistent with counting a foldout as two pages.

Answered above.  See 2.1

3.12 Page 67, L-317(B):  Please consider allowing single-spacing and 8-point font for captions and callouts on graphics.

3.13 Page 67, L-317(B):  Please consider allowing single-spacing for Word tables.

Answer (Solicitation Change): (3.9/3.12/3.13)  Provision L-317(b)(1) is revised to add paragraph (D) as follows:

“(D)

· Double spacing is not required for tables, captions, callouts on graphics, headers and footers or RFP Attachments

· A minimum of 8-point font is required for captions and callouts on graphics, and headers/footers.

· Headers and footers may be placed within the 1 inch margins.

· A cover page, table of contents and a one-page introduction may be included in each Section of the Volume I printed material.  These pages are informational only and will not be scored in the evaluation of the proposal, nor count against the page limitations stated elsewhere in this provision.”

3.14 Page 68, L-317, table at top of page:  The “Type of Business” column heading requires a choice of only one type.  However, the sentence in the paragraph below says, “The offeror’s shall list all applicable business types for which each subcontractor qualifies.”  Since many small business qualify in more than one category, we suggest eliminating “choose only one” from the table heading.

Answered below.  See 6.4 
3.15 Page 68, L-317, middle of page, note in italics:  It appears that the Small Business Subcontracting Plan required of large business bidders should be placed in Volume III, Offer per page 66, L-317(a) and L-343.  Is this correct?

Answer: The Small Business Subcontracting Plan shall be submitted with Volume III.

3.16 Page 70, L-324.III (Management Plan):  This paragraph requires a description of our management and administrative organization and a sample work structure chart by job classification and code.  However, page 78, M-307.C (Management Plan) does not provide for any evaluation of these two items.  Please consider changing either L-324 or M-307 in order to better align the proposal content and its evaluation.

Answer (Solicitation Change): Section L, Provision L-324, Paragraph (b)III is revised as follows:

“III. Management Plan –  The offeror shall provide a Management Plan that describes: the offeror’s process for processing deliverables, including subcontractor deliverables; process to ensure work meets contract standards, including subcontractor work; and process for delivery of preliminary and final deliverables.  The management plan submittal shall be no more than a maximum of 20 pages.”

3.17 Page 70,  L-325:  May we include subcontractor past performance as part of the five cited contracts?

Answer: Subcontractor past performance may be included as part of the five cited contracts, provided the individual subcontractor cited is providing at least 10 percent of the estimated level of effort.

3.18 Page 70, L-325(b) and RFP Attachment 6:  As a courtesy to our customers, may we fill in the SPAWAR Fax number, e-mail address, contractor name, and contract number on the Attachment 6 questionnaire before sending it to our past performance references?

Answer: Yes.

3.19 Page 71, L-328(2):  Are subcontractor position descriptions also required?

Answer: Refer to Provision L-328, Paragraph (4). 

3.20 Page 75, L-345(d):  In order to adequately describe the experience of senior personnel within the 3-page resume limit, please allow single-spacing on resumes.  We note that the sample resume in RFP Attachment 7 is single-spaced. 

Answer:  Resumes may be single spaced as shown in the Attachment 7 “Resume Format” sample.

3.21 Page 78, M-307.B (Courseware Development and Quality Assurance Processes) and M-307.C (Management Plan).  Bullet 8 under B (Process to integrate/manage subcontractor) and Bullet 1 under C (Process for Managing Subcontractors) ask for essentially the same information.  Please consider deleting Bullet 8 under B.  Rationale:  Managing and integrating subcontractors is a management process that applies to all work under this contract.

Answer (Solicitation Change): M-307(c)(1)is revised as follows:


a. Paragraph “B.”, Bullet Item No. 8 is revised as follows:

 “(
Process to integrate/manage subcontractor*”

*Offerors are required to address this item regardless of whether or not subcontracting is proposed.

b. Paragraph “C”, Bullet Item No. 1 is deleted.

3.22 Page A2-3, paragraph 9. OPERATOR (O) TRAINING SPECIALIST:  Qualifications include “Awarded … Naval Enlisted Classification (NEC) (or closely related NEC) or other military occupational code for the system (or closely related system) for which the individual is being proposed.”  The specific system will only be identified in individual task orders.  Therefore, may we assume that award of and experience in any current NEC is acceptable for this proposal?

Answer (Solicitation Change): NECs are required to be C4ISR related. Section J, Attachment 2, Paragraph 9b. is revised as follows:

“b.  Education:  An approved military instructor training program.  Awarded the Naval Officer Billet Code (NOBC), Naval Enlisted Classification (NEC) (or closely related NEC) or other military occupational code for the C4ISR system (or closely related C4ISR system) for which the individual is being proposed.”
3.23 Page A2-4, paragraph 10. MAINTENANCE TRAINING SPECIALIST:  Qualifications include “Awarded … Naval Enlisted Classification (NEC) (or closely related NEC) or other military occupational code for the system (or closely related system) for which the individual is being proposed.”  The specific system will only be identified in individual task orders.  Therefore, may we assume that award of and experience in any current NEC is acceptable for this proposal?

Answer (Solicitation Change): NECs are required to be C4ISR related.  Section J, Attachment 2, Paragraph 10b. is revised as follows:

“b.  Education:  An approved military instructor training program.  Awarded the Naval Enlisted Classification (NEC) (or closely related NEC) or other military occupational code for the C4ISR system (or closely related C4ISR system) for which the individual is being proposed.”
3.24 The Q&A document distributed with the RFP states in part:

January 12, 2004 update-
Q7. Are there any significant unstated (in the draft SOW) requirements that we should be aware of?

A7. No. However, references to “weapons systems”, included in the draft SOW, will be deleted from the final solicitation SOW.

The SOW references to “weapons systems” have indeed been eliminated.  However, two of the Personnel Qualifications, (15-Logistics Analyst and 22-Junior Logistics Analyst) still require “x years of weapon system, analytical or management experience.”  Please address this apparent inconsistency.

Answer (Solicitation Change): The following paragraphs of Section J, Attachment 2 are revised to delete the reference to “weapon(s)” systems in the functions, education and experience paragraphs:


9. OPERATOR (O) TRAINING SPECIALIST


10. MAINTENANCE TRAINING SPECIALIST


12. SYSTEMS ANALYST



14. SENIOR (Sr.) LOGISTICS ANALYST


15. LOGISTICS ANALYST


16. EDITOR


18. TECHNICAL WRITER/ILLUSTRATOR


19. DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT SPECIALIST


21. SIMULATOR INSTRUCTOR


22. JR. LOGISTICS ANALYST


23. SENIOR EDITOR

 3.25 Page A8-4:  Paragraph 4.2.3 appears to contemplate an annual rather than the 6-month award term evaluation period described elsewhere.  Please clarify the timing of the evaluation periods and the duration of the award terms.

Answer: There will be an annual evaluation to determine eligibility for an additional six-month award term.  Each award term period is six months.  Award term evaluations continue annually through year eight of the contract.  This is not a discrepancy.

4
4.1  Section C-316(a) states that “All or a portion of the effort under this contract will be performed on a Government installation.”  What percentage of the effort will be on government site, and what percentage will be on contractor site?

Answered above. See 1.1

4.2  The table in section L-328 delineates a total of 146,250 hours of direct labor per year in the base period of performance of this contract.   Section B-309(a) states that the total number of hours of direct labor for each award period, specified as six months in this contract, will also be 146,250.  Are we to assume this is a typographical error?  Will the hours of direct labor during the six-month award period be 73,125?  

Answered above. See 3.1

4.3  Will subcontractors be required to submit electronic copies of their volumes directly to SPAWAR Institute?  Or will they submit directly to the Prime, who will then deliver all documentation?

Answer: Subcontractors shall submit the required information either directly to the prime contractor who shall incorporate that information into their submission, or subcontractors may submit the required information (e.g. proprietary cost data) under separate cover.  Either form of submission shall be in accordance with the instructions  of Provision L-349.

4.4  In the DRAFT Personnel Quals section, security clearances were included as resume requirements.  In the RFP Personnel Quals section, no such requirements are included.  Are there specific clearances that are required for any resumes?

Answered above. See 3.3

4.5  Section L317 (1) (C), for charts will 10-point font, single space be acceptable?

Answered above. See 3.13

4.6 Section L-317 (b)(2)(B) on page 67 states that pages in the Cost Volume shall be numbered consecutively.  There are no sections in the Cost Volume.

If the offeror creates separate sections of the Cost Volume please confirm that we can use subsections in the following format.  Example: Volume - Section/Factor - page # (for example, II-2-18).

Answer:  If “sections” are used in Volume II (Cost), the numbering may identify those sections as the above example describes.

4.7  Please inform us how the Government wishes the offeror to distinguish between “General Experience” and “Specialized Experience” for purposes of completing the table at the top of each resume. For example:

INTERACTIVE COURSEWARE SPECIALIST: “c. Experience: Three years recent experience (within the last five years) in the development of ICW/CAI materials utilizing authoring and animation systems, and/or simulation and modeling system(s), and one year experience utilizing QUEST for Windows, ICON Author or Authorware Pro.”

QUESTION: Does this indicate that the “one year experience-utilizing QUEST for Windows, ICON Author or Authorware Pro” is specialized experience or general experience? Is the preceding requirement: “Three years recent experience (within the last five years) in the development of ICW/CAI materials utilizing authoring and animation systems, and/or simulation and modeling system(s)…” considered general or specialized experience?

Answer:  The offeror may use its own determination to distinguish between general and specialized experience (See resume sample).  As the sample states, the experience described in the resume text must substantiate the information represented in the table.  Resumes will be scored only against the desired qualifications contained in Section J, Attachment (2). 

4.8  There are cases where the years of personnel experience, or how they may be gained, are unclear, such as that of the INSTRUCTIONAL SYSTEM DESIGNER in which the required years of experience are stated as follows:

“Three years recent experience (within the last five years) in instructional systems design, which should include analysis, design, development, implementation, and evaluation of interactive courseware training curricula directly related to technical training requirements.  One year experience functioning in a team environment (acting as a team leader), and developing training.”

 

QUESTION: May the stated “One year experience functioning in a team environment (acting as a team leader), and developing training.” be gained concurrently with the “Three years recent experience (within the last five years) in instructional systems design…” or must it be a separate one year of experience?

Answer: The 1 year experience as a Team Leader may be gained concurrently with the 3 years experience.

5
5.1  Attachment 2 – Personnel Qualifications, 9. Operator (O) Training Specialist and 10. Maintenance Training Specialist

Question:  Is the Occupational Code limited to just the C4I systems?

Answered above.  (see 3.22 and 3.23)

5.2  Solicitation page A2-2,3: Personnel Qualifications. Education for the Interactive Courseware Specialist (ICW) includes “A formal training course utilizing an authoring package such as QUEST for Windows or Authorware Pro.  Individual(s) who do not have the formal training may substitute two additional years of recent experience (within the last five years) using an authoring package such as QUEST for Windows, ICON Author or Authorware Pro.” However, experience for this labor category requires “…one year experience utilizing QUEST for Windows, ICON Author or Authorware Pro.” 

Question: Does this mean that the ICW Specialists must have experience in QUEST for Windows, ICON Author or Authorware Pro as stated in the experience section for this labor category, or will experience/formal training in another, similar authoring be acceptable, as implied in the Education section for this labor category?

Answer: The authoring packages listed in the solicitation’s Attachment 2, Paragraph 6 were examples.  The ICW Specialist should have experience using authoring packages.  Resumes should list the names of those packages that the ICW Specialist has experience using.
5.3  Part IV, Section M entitled, Evaluation Factors for Award, page 79, (3) Identification of and Commitment to Small Business Subcontractor.

Question: For Large business primes, what is the evaluation criterion?

Answer:  Under the Identification of and Commitment to Small Business Subcontractors factor,  the evaluation criterion for large business primes are: (1) The extent to which the prime offeror has proposed first tier small and small disadvantaged business subcontractors which meet or exceed the stated standards; (2) The general extent to which the prime offeror has proposed first tier subcontractors which are small disadvantaged, women-owned small, HUBzone and veteran-owned small businesses; and (3) The general extent to which the prime offeror has attained applicable goals for small business participation under previous U.S. Government contracts that required subcontracting plans.

6
6.1  Page 3, under B-309 (a) calls for 146,250 hours in each award term period.  Since award term periods are six months in duration and the hours listed cover a full year, what is the correct total of hours for each award term period?
 

Answered above. See 3.1

6.2  Volume III L-343 Paragraph (3) (d) asks for a "Draft" Small Business and Small Disadvantaged Business Plan. Please clarify.

 

Answer:  Section I, Clause 52.219-9 requires a “large business” to submit a Small Business Subcontracting Plan.  Alternate II of the aforementioned clause requires that:  “The subcontracting plan shall be negotiated within the time specified by the Contracting Officer.”  The phrase “Draft” refers to the fact that until the subcontracting plan is approved by the Contracting Officer, it is considered a “draft” plan. 

6.3  Page 70 Paragraph L-325 States that an offeror shall provide no more than 5 past performance contract summaries. In a teaming environment is the offeror allowed to submit five past performance contract summaries for the prime and five each for the first-tier subcontractors, or is the offeror limited to a total of five narratives for the entire team?

 

Answer:  The five past performance references limitation is a maximum and includes the prime offeror and all proposed first tier subcontractors.

6.4 Page 79 Item (3) A. Is the 40% small business subcontracting goal applicable to, or a percentage of the total contract value, or of the total amount to be subcontracted
Answer: The 40% small business subcontracting goal is applicable to total contract value.

6.5 Page 74 Paragraph L-343 (e) requires the offeror to provide a list of credit references including suppliers. Is there a minimum amount of references required? Is there a maximum amount of credit references and suppliers to be provided?

Answer:  The number of references provided is at the discretion of the offeror.

7
7.1 The Statement of Work (SOW), attachment 1 to the RFP, lists CDRLs with their titles on page 9. The CDRL numbers and titles do no correlate with the CDRLs contained in Exhibit A. There are some disagreements in CDRL numbers and titles. Which is correct? 
Answer: 

The CDRL references in the SOW should read as follows in accordance with the Exhibit (A) CDRLs.  SOW references will be corrected at the time of contract award.

A001 

Report/Minutes, Record of Meetings

A002 

Report/Technical Close out Report

A003 

Report Progress

A004 

Training Situation Document

A005 

Instructional Performance Requirements Document

A006 

Instructional Media Requirements Document

A007 

Instructional Media Design Package

A008 

Training Program Structure Document

A009 

Course Conduct Information Package

A010 

Training Conduct Support Document

A011 

Training Evaluation Document

A012 

Test Package

A013 

Instructional Media Package

A014 

Training System Support Document

7.2 There is no mention of an “Introduction” in section L. Will an introduction be evaluated and will it count against the page count in each written section, Volume I, Sections A, B and C?
Answered above. See 3.13 

7.3 There is no mention of Security Clearance requirements, although there is reference to a DD 254, which is not included in the RFP. Section L, Clause 345 on page 75 of the RFP includes “security clearance (as applicable)” but does not state any security clearance requirements. Personnel Qualifications, Attachment 2, does not include Security Clearance requirements. The Resume Format, attachment 7 has “security clearance” as an item to complete but no requirement for level of clearance. Are there security clearance requirements that need to be met?

Answered above. See 3.3 

7.4 Several personnel requirements are listed in different sequences in Section L, Clause 328, page 71 and Clause 345 on page 75. Is there any significance to the sequence of listing personnel and if there is, which clause contains the correct sequence?

Answer: There is no relevance to the sequence of personnel.  Provision L-328 lists estimated level of effort for all labor categories.  Provision L-349 lists only key personnel.  The relative weight regarding the evaluation of key personnel is stated in Section M, Provision M-307.

7.5 Section L, Clause 324 (b).1.2 states that “The presentation shall contain no more than a maximum of 20 on-screen displays.” What is the definition of “on-screen display?” 

Answer: An on-screen display is defined as a single frame of instructional material that is part of a lecture or ICW lesson. 

7.6 Are we allowed to include an introduction on the CD submittal? And if so, would that count as one of the on-screen displays?

Answer: Offerors may include an introduction on the CD submittal.  The introduction will not be scored, nor count against the on screen slide/display limitation contained in Section L, Provision L-324. 

7.7 Can the sample submittal be on DVD or are the submittals restricted to CD only?

Answer: Submittal is restricted to a CD compatible with a Microsoft Windows operating system and software.

7.8 The RFP requires 40% of the price be assigned to small business sub-contractors. Does this only apply to labor or does in include travel and material?

Answer: The 40% goal applies to total subcontracted labor; and in addition, any applicable material, travel and fee.

7.9 Section L, Clause 317, page 66 states, “…submit electronic copies of the cost proposal (only to the Contracting Officer). Clause L, Section 349, page 79, appears to indicate all should be uploaded. Please advise which Volumes should be uploaded to the SPAWAR website. 

Answer:  Unless otherwise instructed in this solicitation (see Provisions L-317, L-324 and L-349 for complete submittal instructions), all volumes should be uploaded to the SPAWAR E-commerce web site.  The L-317(a) *note on page 66 referencing the copy of the cost proposal submitted “only to the Contracting Officer” is for an additional copy in a format that can be edited for cost realism adjustment purposes.  

7.10 Section L-349 requires the electronic proposal and the signed paper copy must be identical. Section L-324 asks for interactive courseware. Please advise how interactive courseware should be submitted in the paper copy.

Answer:  There is no requirement to provide paper copies of the Sample Courseware Submittals. 

7.11 We request that the subcontractors be allowed to submit their detailed cost data via CD or floppy disk in their sealed package versus uploading it to the website. Please advise. 

Answer:  All offerors are required to comply with L-349 instructions regarding submission of required information.

8
8.1 In section L-317(b)(1)(B) of the above referenced solicitation it indicates that the offeror’s proposal shall be double-spaced with one inch margins. Does this apply to the entire proposal, or are attachments excluded? More specifically, may we use single spacing on Attachment 5: Relevant Information Sheet(s) and Attachment 7: Resume Format(s)?

Answered above.  See 3.13
9
9.1  Section L requires a sample submittal of 15 Computer Aided Instruction, 20 Interactive Courseware, and 5 Testing Material slides in Power Point format. The evaluation criteria in Section M states that the submittals will be evaluated for, among other things, the use of audio, video and animation. Does the government desire production courseware for examples or excerpts which demonstrate the capabilities and attributes outlined in Section M?

Answer: The requirement is to produce a “Sample Lesson” using the evaluation factors.
10 
10.1 Reference Section L-324 on page 69 and Section M-307 on page 78.:


(a) Are we correct in assuming that the page limits in Section L-324 (b) I for the sample courseware submittals apply only to the actual on-screen presentation slides and that the Speaker's Notes to be evaluated in accordance with Section M are NOT included in these page limits?


(b) If our assumption in (a) is correct, please advise how you would like us to provide the paper copy of the Speaker's Notes, assuming paper is required.  Do you want the Speaker's Notes following each on-screen presentation slide, at the end of the slide copies in a separate section in the paper copy, or as part of the presentation slides in a reduced-size slide (PowerPoint notes view)?

 Answer: No paper copies of the Sample Courseware Submittals is required.  The presentation format of the Speaker’s Notes is at the discretion of the offeror.  The Speaker’s Notes will not count against the slide/display limitations.
10.2 Reference Section L-324 (b)I.1. on page 69.  May we include a cover sheet (slide) and agenda (slide) excluded from the 15-slide count?

Answered above. See 7.6

10.3 Reference Section L-324 (note with asterisk) on page 69 and Section L-349 on page 76.  Do you want the Sample Courseware Submittals ONLY on CD or do you want both CD and hard copies of this material?

Answered above. See 7.10

10.4 Reference Section L-324(b)I.2.  Are paper copies of the 20 Interactive Courseware on-screen displays required?  Our concern is that many of the subfactors to be evaluated in accordance with M-307(1).A.--for example, use of animation, 2D/3D, video, etc.-- will be poorly represented and difficult to evaluate in a paper copy.

Answered above. See 7.10

11
11.1 Reference:  Section L – Other Direct Cost  - The Government has provided estimated ODC amounts to be included in all offerors’ cost proposals.  This Offeror assumes that these amounts are to be burdened, based on each offeror’s established cost estimating procedures.  Is this assumption correct?

Answer: Yes

11.2 Reference:  Section M – Evaluation Factors for Award – The Government has stated that offers will be evaluated based on the total cost and fixed fee for the base term plus the total cost and fixed fee for the award terms.  This Offeror assumes that the total cost and fixed fee is based on the RFP specified hours and ODCs plus applicable burdens.  Is this assumption correct?

Answer: Yes

11.3 Reference:  Attachment 2 – Personnel Qualifications – The Education requirement for the INTERACTIVE COURSEWARE  (ICW) SPECIALIST allows for the substitution of experience “using an authoring package such as QUEST for Windows, ICON Author or Authorware Pro.” However, the Experience requirement includes “one year experience utilizing QUEST for Windows, ICON Author or Authorware Pro.” Would experience in another similar authoring system such as one of these three also be acceptable experience?

Answered above. See 5.2

11.4 Reference:  Attachment 2 – Personnel Qualifications – The Functions description for the MASTER TRAINING SPECIALIST (OPERATOR (O)) states that this position “shall serve as the technical team leader during the analysis, design, development, presentation, and revision of new and/or modified aircrew training curricula …” Does the Government anticipate that this labor category will only be used for aircrew training curricula development under this contract?

Answer (Solicitation Change): Section J, Attachment (2), Paragraph 7a. is revised to delete the word “aircrew.” 

11.5 Reference:  Attachment 2 – Personnel Qualifications – The Education and Experience requirements of the OPERATOR (O) TRAINING SPECIALIST and the MAINTENANCE TRAINING SPECIALIST are keyed to “… the system (or closely related system) for which the individual is being proposed,” “… the same or similar systems and support equipment,” and “…directly related to the system/functional area for which the individual is being proposed.” We understand that at the delivery order level, this would relate to a specific system or functional area. For the purpose of the overall contract proposal, may we assume that resumes reflecting experience in any C4ISR-related system or functional area are suitable?

Answered above. See 3.22/3.23

11.6 Reference:  Attachment 2 – Personnel Qualifications – The Experience requirements for the GRAPHICS SPECIALIST include “one year recent experience (within the last two years) as a key team member or team leader in the design and development of multi-media aviation training materials.” Is it the Government’s intent that all Graphics Specialists on this contract have recent experience developing aviation training materials?

Answer (Solicitation Change): Section J, Attachment (2), Paragraph 13c. is revised to delete the word “aviation.”

12
12.1 RFP, Page 3, Section B-309—The base period estimate for total hours equates to an annual expenditure rate of 146,250 hours; however, the stated Award Term expenditure also states 146,250. Given the Award Terms are for 6-month periods, should each Award Term expenditure rate actually be 73,125 hours (one-half of the 146,250 hours stated)? Please clarify.

Answered above.  See 3.1

12.2 RFP, Page 66, Section L-317—This section provides for a 10 point font restriction for all text; however, there is no direction provided for exhibits. May exhibits be presented in 8 point font?

Answered above.  See 3.13
12.3 RFP, Page 69, Section L-324 (b)(I), Sample Courseware Submittals—Given that the placement of the sample submittals may not allow for appropriate context to be established, may offerors provide introductory narrative supporting material relating to the sample courseware submittals?

Answered above. See 7.6 
12.4 RFP, Page 70, Section L-324 (b)(III), Management Plan—This section requires “a sample work structure chart by job classification and code.”  Offerors can construct a work structure chart with the position descriptions provided in Attachment 2, however it is not clear what the Government means by “code” as there are no corresponding codes provided in Attachment 2. Could the Government please clarify?

Answered above. See 3.16

12.5 RFP, Page 74, Section L-343 (d)(2)—In that contractor rates are usually only disseminated to DCAA and not shared among each other due to the proprietary nature of the information, please verify that the prime contractor’s efforts to evaluate the reasonableness of the subcontractor’s fully loaded price is sufficient.

Answer: Under the requirements of Provision L-343, prime offerors are not required to collect, and subcontractors are not required to submit to the primes, company proprietary information. 

12.6 RFP, Page 75, Section L-345—Similar to Question 3 above, may offerors provide introductory narrative supporting the Key Personnel and Identification of and Commitment to Small Business Subcontractors sections.

Answered above.  See 3.13

12.7 RFP, Page 77-78, Section M-307—Given that the evaluation criteria for the sample submittals include capability for animation, 2D/3D, audio, and video, could the Government please describe the exact specifications of the platform that will be used to evaluate the submittals?

Answer: Standard NMCI Workstation  “Red” seat:
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12.8 RFP, Page A2-6, Section 13(b), Attachment 2, Personnel Qualifications—The Government speaks to a “Basic Educational Requirement” for the Graphics Specialist. Could the Government please provide information on the requirements? For example, is the requirement a High School Diploma, GED, or equivalency certificate?

Answer:  “Basic Educational Requirement” is defined as High School Diploma or Equivalent

12.9 RFP, Page A2-7/A2-8, Sections 17(b), 18(b), 19(b), and 20(b), Attachment 2, Personnel Qualifications—Referring back to Question #6, the “Basic Education Requirement” is also not defined for the Administrative Assistant, Technical Writer/Illustrator, Document Management Specialist, and Clerk Typist. Could the Government please define the Basic Education Requirement for these positions?

Answer:  “Basic Educational Requirement” is defined as High School Diploma or Equivalent
13
13.1 RFP, Page A2-3, Section 7(a), Attachment 2, Personnel Qualifications—The Government notes “aircrew training curricula” under this Key labor category. Could the Government please clarify if this position is solely limited to aircrew training, or will it encompass other target audiences, such as ashore command center and shipboard training? 

Answered above. See 11.4

13.2 RFP, Page A2-3/A2-4, Sections 9 and 10, Attachment 2, Personnel Qualifications—In the Government’s response to vendor questions of January 12, 2004, it was noted that “references to weapons systems included in the draft SOW, will be deleted from the final solicitation SOW.” However, references to weapons systems are still contained in both the Operator Training Specialist and Maintenance Training Specialist categories. Should these references also be deleted?

Answered above. See 3.24 
13.3 RFP, Page 67, Section L-317 (b)(1)(B)—The Government indicates that proposals should be double-spaced. Given the complexity of data requested and the page restrictions for each section (e.g., a 20-page section is effectively reduced to 10 pages with this restriction), offeror respectfully requests that the double-spacing restriction be eliminated. In addition, may offeror assume that graphics may be single-spaced?

Answered above. See 3.12/13
13.4 RFP, Page 67, Section L-317 (b)(1)(B)—It is generally specified and accepted that headers and footers may be included within 1” margin restrictions. Is this acceptable to SPAWAR?

Answered above. See 3.12/13
14
14.1 Page 67 of the subj RFP  Vol I, Section C, I.  is asking the offerors to provide the latest DCMA subcontracting program compliance rating.  As a small business, we were never required to provide have in place a subcontracting plan that required review and approval by DCMA.  I do however provide SF294/295's to GSA to report our small business participation.  Will it be sufficient for us to provide copies of these forms to you as part of the proposal?  Please advise.

Answer: The DCMA Subcontract Compliance Rating submission is applicable to large businesses only.
15
15.1 Section L-317(l) (B) states “Foldouts maybe used, hut shall he no larger than 8-1/2” by 14”.  Foldouts are normally 11” by 17’. Please clarify.

Answered above. See 2.1

15.2 SPAWAR solicitations often include Section L-336 (Place of Performance - Variance) that identifies the approximate place of performance for the anticipated effort. In the Pre-RFP  questions and answers, the Government stated that 65% or the LOE will he performed at the   Contractor’s Facilities. Therefore, would it be the Govt best interest to incorporate the following  clause requiring that the contractor’s facilities to he within 1-hour diving distance to SPAWAR  Institute?

“L-336 PLACE OF PERFORMANCE (VARIANCE) Your Proposal must be based on

performance of approximately 65% of work off-site in Contractor facilities within one (1) hour surface driving time of SPAWAR Institute locations.”

Answered above. See 1.1
15.3   Sections L-324 and L-349 identify submission of electronic files. In order to ensure that the workstations used for the evaluation of the proposal support the electronic files delivered, can  offerors assume that the target hardware/software environment will be an NMCI desktop workstation and Gold Disk version? If so, please specify the contents of that environment. If not, please identify the configuration of the workstation(s) and software environment that will be used to evaluate the submitted files.

Answered above. See 12.7

15.4   Sections L-324 and L-349 identify submission of hard copy and identical PowerPoint flies. How does the Government intend to evaluate hardcopy PowerPoint presentations that must include the interactive multimedia features such as audio, simulation, video and navigation aids required by M-307(e)(1)(a)? These interactive multimedia features cannot be readily reproduced or visible in hard copy format.

Answered above.  See 7.10
15.5 Statement of Work Section 2.0 Reference Documents: Please identify which version/source of SCORM that the Government will be used in evaluation of proposals.

Answer: Version 1.2 or better.

15.6 Statement of Work Section 3.1 identifies that the contractor shall provide technical, analytical and development services for C4ISR systems, training systems, support equipment, Joint systems and Foreign Military Sales (FMS) systems for Code 260. However, Sections L, M, the Statement of Work and the Personnel Qualifications do not identify any C4ISR systems or SPAWAR programs of record. Please clarify how the Government intends to evaluate offeror’s capabilities with respect to these systems and which specific systems should he addressed.

Answer: Specific C4ISR systems were intentionally not listed to allow for emerging technology and hardware.  Offerors will be evaluated in accordance with the criteria set forth in Section M.

15.7 Section J. Attachment 2, Personnel Qualifications. The requirements for Program Manager includes provision for general and recent experience with training systems. However, no provision or requirement is identified for experience with current SPAWAR programs and the management of contracts of similar scope and complexity. We view these as key factors for program success. Will the Government add these requirements?

Answer: The Government has reviewed the desired personnel qualifications for the Program Manager position and determined them to be sufficient as stated.

15.8 Section J, Attachment 2, Personnel Qualifications. Several position’s description of their education requirements are simply listed as “Basic Education” or include the term along with other information…Ex) 18. Technical Writer/Illustrator. The term Basic Education doesn’t seem to be defined anywhere within the REP. Is it correct to assume that Basic Education equates to a High School diploma or GED?

Answered above.  See 12.8
15.9  Section J, Attachment 2, Personnel Qualifications. Several positions description of their education requirements note such things as  Awarded the Naval Officer Billet Code (NOBC). Naval Enlisted Classification (NEC) (or closely related NEC) or other military occupational code for the system (or closely related system) for which the individual is being proposed. Ex) 9. Operator (O) Training Specialist.

Is the intent of the Government to evaluate candidates with respect to system(s) or closely related systems relevant to the SPAWAR Institute? If so, please identify which specific systems should be addressed.

Answered above. See 3.22/3.23

15.10 Section 1, Attachment 2, Personnel Qualifications. The description for Master Training Specialist (Operator) under a. Functions, contains a specific reference to “aircrew” training curricula. Is it correct to assume that the Government’s intent for the Master Training Specialist (Operator) is to work with “new and/or modified operator training curricula” as is the case for “new and/or modified maintenance training curricula” for the Master Training Specialist (Maintenance)?

Answered above See 11.4

15.11  Section J, Attachment 2, Personnel Qualifications. The description for Operator Training Specialist under a. Functions, contains a specific reference to “weapon systems”. Is it the  Government’s intent for the Operator Training Specialist to work specifically on training materials for “weapons systems” or can it be assumed that any applicable C4ISR system type training experience be acceptable?

Answered above. See 3.22/3.24

15.12  Section J, Attachment 2, Personnel Qualifications. The description for Maintenance  Training Specialist under a. Functions, contains a specific reference to “weapon systems”. Is it the Government’s intent for the Maintenance Training Specialist to work specifically on training materials for “weapons systems” or can it be assumed that any applicable C4ISR system type training experience be acceptable?

Answered above. See 3.23/3.24

15.13  The solicitation does not include a DD-254 or other security classification guidance. Since the majority of SPAWAR programs of record require secret or top-secret clearances and storage capabilities, please identify the security requirements associated with this program. Please define the clearance requirements for personnel and contractor facility requirements.

Answered above. See 3.3
15.14  The RFP SOW (4.3 Deliverables) CDRLs do not align with Exhibit A, 1423 CDRLs (i.e.. SOW CDRL A005 calls out the Training Situation Document Exhibit A CDRL A005 calls out the Instructional Performance Requirements Document).  This continues through all callouts.  Is this correct?
Answered above. See 7.1
16
16.1 In section A2-6 Paragraph 13 (Graphics Specialist) of the RFP it makes reference to a “Basic Educational Requirement”.  Please define this term – is this synonymous with High School Diploma?  Additionally, section A2-7 Paragraph 17b (Administrative Assistant) of the RFP makes reference to “Basic Education”.  Please define this term – is this synonymous with High School Diploma?

Answered above.  See 12.8
17
17.1 With regard to the subject RFP, Section C-316 states that "All or a portion of the effort under this contract will be performed on a Government installation."  Previous solicitations have stipulated the percentage of government-site work to facilitate costing and to establish a consistent basis for all competitors.  Will the government provide the estimated percentage of government-site work for use in preparing cost proposals?

Answered above.  See 1.1
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